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Tustice 1o maintain the effectiveness and quality of judicial assignments. Thase standards and
suidelines set out eligibility requirements and procedures for serving in the program. The
California Rules of Court describe the procedure for periodic review of judges.

4. The allegation that the assigned judge received county provided benefits
more than a decade age before he retired is not, as a matter of law, grounds
for disqualification.

The assigned judze does not receive County provided benefits, and has not received them
for over a decade. Petitioner contends, however, that because the assigned judge is 2 miember of
the group of judges who cver once received County provided benefits, the assigned judge is
disqualificd from determining the issue of disquaiification of a judge who also onee received
auch benefits. However, the Legislature has specifically provided that is not a grounds for
disqualificatior. for cause. Code of Civil Procedure section 170.2 provides that it shall not be
grounds for disqualification that the judge i3 ot is not a member of group and the proceeding

invalves the rights of such a group. Group membership in this context is broadly defined. For

| example, membership int the California Tudges Association does not preclude consideration of an

amicus curiae brief filed by that Association. See People v. Superior Court {Mudge) (1997) 54

Cal. App.dth 407.

3. Not having timely sought review of the determination of the question of
disqualification by Judge Jones on the same ground, petitioner is hound by
that determination.

Petitioner previously filed a statement of disqualification for cause against Judge Jones n
this case rasing the same ground of disqualification. On August 2, 201 1, Judge Jonzs filed an
order striking the statement of disqualification for cause, finding inter alfa, the only asseited
ground for disqualification, the receipt of local benefits from the County of Los Angeles, does
not, as & matter of law canstitute grounds for disqualification. Judge Jones ruled that a "judicial
officer's receipt of benefits from the County of Los Angeles is not disqualifying, as those benefits
are mandatory and may not be terminated during the judge’s term of office. See Government

Code section 68220, The California Supreme Court has held this sufficient to maintain the

4 .
Order Striking Statement of Disqualification
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independence of the judiciary. Olson v. Cory (1980) 27 Cal.3d 335, 543." August 2, 2011,
Strike Order, page 3, lines 11 to 16. In her order, Judge Janes further stated: "Petitioner is
reminded that this determination of'the question of the disqualification is not an appealable order
and may be reviewed only by a writ of mandate from the Court of Appeal sought within 10 days
of notice to the parties of the decision. Code of Civil Procedure §170.3(d)." August 2, 2011,
S*rike Order, page 3. lines 17 to 20,

No timely petition for writ of mandate was filed in the Court of Appeal seeking review of
that determination of the question of disqualificavion. Accordingly. that determination is now
final and not subject to further review.

6. The statentent of dizgualification on its face discloses no legal grouad for

disqualification.

A judicial officer’s prior receipt of benefits from the County of Los Angeles is not
disqualifying, as those benefits are mandatory and may not be terminated during the judge’s term
of office. See Govermnent Code section 68220, The California Supreme Court has held this
sufficient to maintain the independence of the judiciary. Olson v. Cory {1980) 27 Cal.3d 535,
343,

This is particularly true where, as here, the judge has retired and wiil receive those
benefits. If the length of term of office is sufficient to maintain the independency of the
judiciary, as the Supreme Court held in Ofsan v, Cory, the passage of maore than a decade of time
is certatnly similarly sufficient.

Conclusion

Since the statament of disqualification on its face discloses no legal grounds for
disqualification, it is ordered stricken pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure §170.4, subdivision
(b). The parties arc reminded that this determination of the question of the disqualification is not
an appealable order and may be reviewed only by a writ of mandate from the Court of Appeal
sought within 10 days of notice 1o the parties of the decision. Code of Civil Procedure §170.3(d)
[n the event that a timely writ is sought and an appellate court determines that an answer should

have been timely filed, such an answer is [iled herewith, See PB4, LLC v KPOD, LTD (2003)

N B »
Onder Striking Statement of Disqualification
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19 col. Rev 24 374
1 || 112 Cal.App.4th 965, 972; accord, Fine v. Superior Court (2002) 97 Cal.App.4th 651, fn. 3 at

2| 658.
3 GOOD CAUSE APPEARING THEREFORE, It is so ordered.
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Verified Answer of Robert O Brien

I, Robert O° Brien, declare;

L ['am a retired Superior Court judge, having retired in 1999, 1am currently serving
on assignment from the Chief Justice to scrve as a judge of the Los Angeles Superior Court, As
such I do not receive any benefits from the County of Las Ahgeles. In this capacity I have been
assigned to preside over this case for all purposes

2. I am not prejudiced or biased against or in favor of any party to this proceeding or
their eounsel.

3. I'know of no facts or circumstances which would require my disqualification or
recusal in this case.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correet and of my own
personal knowledge, except as to those matters stated to be on my information and belief, and as
10 those matiers, | believe them to be true. Executed this G:s e day of SCE’L@MM

2011, 0t Jos Drove fe . California,
T

>

Fieﬁe?t"ﬂ’ﬂricﬁ i
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELLES

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE--1 hereby certify that I delivered a true copy of the ORDER RE:
STRIKING STATEMENT OF DISQUALIFICATION to counsel named below by placing a
copy thereof in 2 sealed envelope addressed as shown below in such manner as to cause it to be

deposited with postage prepaid in the U. 8. Mail on the date shown below in the ordinary course

DATED: September 6, 2011 JOHN A. CLARKE, Bxecutive Officer/Clerk
By: ?\[i %gtu
L. KLEIN, Deputy Clerk
DEPARTMENT 59

DAVID R. HERNANDEZ
5312 BELLINGHAM AVE. #3
VALLEY VILLAGE, CA 91607

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

OFFICE OF COUNTY COUNSEL

648 KENNETH HAHN HALL OF ADMINISTRATION
300 W. TEMPLE ST.

LOS ANGELES, CaA 920012

CITY OF LOS ANGELES

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
800 CITY HALL EAST

200 N. SPRING ST.

LOS ANGELES, CA 00012

PROOTF OF AZRVICE
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DAVID R. HERNANDEZ
5312 Bellingham Avenue, #3
Valley Village, CA 91607
(818) 448-3403

In Pro Per

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, CENTRAL DISTRICT

DAVID HERNANDEZ,
Petitioner,

VS.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES,
CITY OF LOS ANGELES, et al,

Respondents.

LOS ANGELES CITY COUNCIL,
et al,

Real Parties in Interest.

Case No. BS 106456

NOTICE OF NULL AND VOID
ORDER DATED SEPT. 6, 2011

and

DISQUALIFICATION OF
JUDGE ROBERT H. O’BRIEN
FOR

1) HAVING TAKEN $277,925.64
IN ILLEGAL PAYMENTS
FROM LOS ANGELES
COUNTY; 2) HAVING
ILLEGALLY STRUCK
PETITIONER’S VERIFIED
STATEMENT; 3) FAILING TO
FILE AN ANSWER WITHIN 10
DAYS AS REQUIRED BY CCP
SECTION 170.3(c)(3), AND 4)
OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE AND
VIOLATING VARIOUS
FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS.

Notice of Null and Void 9-6-11 Order and Disqualification

of Judge Robert H. O’Brien
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TO THE SUPERIOR COURT, ALL PARTIES AND THEIR
ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

Please take notice that the Order by Judge Robert H. O’Brien dated
September 6, 2011, is null and void. The Court did not have subject matter
jurisdiction, nor did the judge have personal jurisdiction because Judge O’Brien
was disqualified from the outset on the grounds that: 1) he took $277,925 in
illegal payments from Los Angeles County, 2) he illegally struck Petitioner’s
Verified Statement, 3) he failed to file an answer to Petitioner’s Statement
within 10 days as required by CCP Section 170.3(c)(3), and 4) he obstructed

justice and violated various other Federal and State laws.

Judge Robert O’Brien Was Disqualified From Presiding Over this Case
Retired Judge Robert H. O’Brien was appointed to preside over the present
case on August 26, 2011, but did not have jurisdiction to preside over the case.
The reasons for such lack of jurisdiction is that Judge O’Brien received
approximately $277,925.64 in illegal payments from Los Angeles County, a
Respondent in the case, commencing in 1985 and continuing until 1999 when he
retired as a Superior Court Judge. (See Exhibit 1, attached hereto)
Based upon the receipt of such illegal payments from L.A. County, a party

to the instant case, Judge O’Brien was disqualified from presiding over the case.

Ales
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The case law has long held that “...any act of a disqualified judge is

absolutely void whenever brought into question. A judgment rendered by such a

judge is open to attack at any time.” In re Henry C., (1985) 161 Cal. App.3d

646, 652 citing T.P.B. v. Superior Court, (1977) 66 Cal.App.3d 881, 886.

In Rossco Holdings, Inc. v. Bank of America, (2007) 149 Cal.App.4"™ 1353,

1362, the Court stated:

“Orders made by a disqualified judge are void: (Cadenasso v.
Bank of Italy (1932) 214 Cal. 562, 567-568 [6 P.2d 944]; Christie v.
City of El Centro (2006) 135.Cal. App.4™ 767, 776 [37 Cal Rptr.3"
718].) There is a dispute in recent appellate authority as to whether
such orders should be considered void or only voidable at the option
of a party; the Supreme Court’s latest opinion on the matter held
them to be void.” (Emphasis added)

In Christie v. City of El Centro, (2006) 135 Cal. App 4™ 767, at 776-777,

the Court stated:

“The standard for disqualification is fundamentally an objective one
and not limited to actual bias, (United Farm Workers of America v.
Superior Court (1985) 170 Cal.App.3d 97, 104 [216 Cal.Rptr. 4].)
Disqualification is mandated if a reasonable person would entertain
doubts concerning the judge’s impartiality. (/bid.) *** [I]t is the fact
of disqualification that controls, not subsequent judicial action on
that disqualification.” (Emphasis added)

Retired Judge Robert H. O’Brien was disqualified from the day he
first received a payment from L.A. County.
//

/1
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California law has long held that the receipt of payments from a party to a
case required the disqualification of the judge and often the removal of the judge
from office. See:

(1) CCP Section 170.1(a)(6)(A)(iir);
(2) Code of Judicial Ethics, Canons 2A, 3E(1) and (2), and 4D(1);
(3) California Constitution, Article VI, Section 18(d) (...conduction

prejudicial to the administration of justice that brings the judicial
office into disrepute . . . improper action or dereliction of duty.)

Furthermore, in California the payments to judges by counties were held to
violate Article VI, Section 19, of the California Constitution in the case of

Sturgeon v. County of Los Angeles, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4™ 630, rev. denied

12/23/08. The Court state at page 635:

“Section 19, article VI of the California Constitution requires that the
Legislature ‘prescribes compensation for judges of courts of record.’
The duty to prescribe judicial compensation is not delegable. Thus
the practice of the County of Los Angeles (the county) of
providing Los Angeles County Superior Court judges with
employment benefits, in additional to the compensation
prescribed by the Legislature, is not permissible.” (Emphasis
added)

At page 654, the Court further stated:

“We have been unable to identify any enactment of the
Legislature which prescribes the judicial benefits the county pays
its judges. (Emphasis added.)

It is totally irrelevant that Judge O’Brien is not now receiving the extra

judicial benefits. Once he has received illegal payments, unauthorized by law,

Alé?
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from a party to the case (Los Angeles County), this relationship is certainly
grounds for a person aware of these facts to reasonably entertain a doubt that the
judge would be able to be impartial, and certainly grounds for Judge O’Brien’s

disqualification.
Judge O’Brien Violated The Code Of Judicial Ethics

California Code of Judicial Ethics (the “CJE”) provides that “all judges
shall comply with this Code” and retired judges serving on assignment also
“shall comply with all provisions of this code. . ..” CJE, Canon 6 A. & B.

Judge O’Brien’s actions in dealing with Los Angeles County, receiving
payments not authorized by law and failing to formally disclose such illegal
payments, as required, can hardly be said to “promote public confidence in the
integrity and impartiality of the judiciary.”

California Code of Judicial Ethics, Canons 2A, 3E(1) and(2) and4 (D)(1)

respectively state as follows:

CANON 2: A JUDGE SHALL AVOID IMPROPRIETY AND THE
APPPEARANCE OF IMPROPRIETY IN ALL OF THE JUDGE’S
ACTIVITIES

A. “Promoting Public Confidence
A judge shall respect and comply with the law and shall act at all
times in a manner that promotes public confidence in the integrity
and impartiality of the judiciary.” (Emphasis added)

Rie3
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Canon 3E. “Disqualification

(1) A judge shall disqualify himself in any proceeding in which
disqualification is required by law.

(2) In all trial Court proceedings, a judge shall disclose on the record
information that is reasonably relevant to the question of
disqualification under Code of Civil Procedure section 170.1, even
if the judge believes there is no actual basis for disqualification.”
(Emphasis added)

Canon 4D. “Financial Activities

(1) A judge shall not engage in financial dealings that:
(a) may reasonably be perceived to exploit the judge’s judicial
position ofr,
(b) involve the judge in frequent transactions or continuing
business relationships with lawyers or other persons likely to

appear before the court on which the judge serves.”
(Emphasis added)

Judges who have received the illegal payments from Los Angeles County,
which is not their employer, certainly engage in financial dealings with a party
likely to appear before their court. (Canon 4D, supra.)

Judge O’Brien has not disclosed the illegal payments from Los Angeles
County, a party to the case, though he was required to do so, even if he thought
there was no actual basis for disqualification. (Canon 3E(2), supra.)

Even if a judge were to disclose receiving such payments, that does not
change the fact that the judge who received payments from a party in a case 1)
establishes a clear conflict of interest, 2) most certainly gives the appearance of
impropriety, and 3) fails to promote the integrity of the judiciary. (Canon 2 A,

supra.)

Alet
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In the circumstances of the instant case, Judge Robert O’Brien should
easily come to believe that recusal would further the interests of justice, pursuant
to CCP Section 170.1(a)(6)(A)(i): “A judge shall be disqualified if . . . for any
reason (i) The judge believes his or her recusal would further the interests of
justice.”

Furthermore, a person aware of the facts in the case -- that a judge received
payments from a party in a case, which payments were not authorized by law
and violated the California Constitution and that the judge failed to comply with
the mandatory requirements of the CJE -- such a person might reasonably
entertain a doubt that the judge would be able to be impartial. Thus, pursuant to
CCP 170.1(a)(6)(A)(iii), Judge Robert O’Brien is disqualified for cause from

hearing the instant case.

Judge O’Brien Illegally Struck Petitioner’s Verified
Statement of Disqualification

California CCP Section 170.3(c)(5) provides:

“A judge who refuses to recuse himself or herself shall not pass upon
his or her own disqualification or upon the sufficiency in law, fact,
or otherwise, of the statement of disqualification filed by a party.”
(Emphasis added.)

The aforesaid prohibitions did not stop Judge O’Brien from setting out to

do exactly what was expressly forbidden.
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In the Order Striking Statement of Disqualification dated September 6,
2011, Judge O’Brien is actually “passing upon” his own disqualification! He
tacitly admits this in the order at p. 5, line 24-25: “The parties are reminded that
this determination of the question of the disqualification . . . may be
reviewed only by a writ of mandate . . .”. (Emphasis added.) See also CCP
170.3(d). Thus, Judge O’Brien’s order is his determination of his own
disqualification, in violation of the first part of CCP Section 170.3(c)(5)

But Judge O’Brien did not stop there. He went on to “pass upon . . . the

bk

sufficiency in law, fact or otherwise, of the statement of disqualification . . . .

Judge O’Brien found, held, ruled or set forth in his Order that:

1. A statement of disqualification cannot be based upon information and
belief.

2. The statement of disqualification cannot be based upon a party’s belief.

3. The assigned judge is a retired judge serving on assignment to the Los
Angeles Superior Court by appointment of the Chief Justice and
Chairperson, who does not receive county provided benefits.

4. The allegation that the assigned judge received county provided
benefits more than a decade ago before he retired is not, as a matter of
law, grounds for disqualification.

5. Not having timely sought review of the determination of the question of
disqualification by Judge Jones on the same ground, petitioner is
bound by that determination.

6. The statement of disqualification on its face discloses no legal ground
for disqualification.

Al7)
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Whether or not Judge O’Brien is correct on any of these points is
TOTALLY IRRELEVANT! It is no answer to say that these points by Judge
O’Brien are correct. The law (CCP Section 170.3(0) (5)) does not say that the
judge cannot decide or rule erroneously on the statement, but that he “shall not
pass” on the facts or law in the statement at all! Thus, Judge O’Brien’s passing
on the sufficiency of law and facts or otherwise in ruling on Petitioner’s Verified
Statement violates the second part of CCP 170.3(c)(5).

Additionally, the Code of Judicial Ethics, Canon 2A, supra, requires that
“A judge shall respect and comply with the law . . . ” (Emphasis added).
Judge O’Brien’s disregard of, and utter failure to comply with, CCP Section
170.3(¢c)(5) shows a distinct failure to uphold his mandatory ethical duty as a
judge. A person aware of the facts - that a judge would violate the law and
breach his ethical duty in opposing Petitioner’s Verified Statement - would have
all the more reason to have a substantial doubt as to Judge O’Brien’s capacity to
be impartial. CCP 170.1(a)(6)(A)(iii).

In light of all the above, it is easy to see that Judge O’Brien’s Order
striking Statement of Disqualification, dated September 6, 2011, violates the law
and 1s illegal per se. Thus, Judge O’Brien’s illegal order is null and void on

these grounds, as well as others.
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Judge O’Brien Failed To Answer Petitioner’s Verified Statement

Judge O’Brien purports, as really an afterthought, that he is filing an
“answer” to Petitioner’s Verified Statement (Order 9-6-11, p.5, line 28) after
ruling the statement “is ordered stricken.” (/bid., line 23) Once having struck the
statement, however, Judge O’Brien could no longer answer the statement, for as

pointed out in PBA, LLC v. KPOD, Ltd., (2003) 112 Cal.App.4™ 965 at 973:

“...ajudge cannot consent or answer affer striking the statement of
disqualification . . . upon striking the declaration, it no longer exists
to be consented to or answered.” (Emphasis added)

Thus, Judge O’Brien’s attempt to file an answer is, as a matter of law, null

and void.
Furthermore, CCP Section 170.31(c)(4) provides:

“A judge who fails to file . . . [an] answer within time allowed shall be
deemed to have consented to his . . . disqualification . . . .”

Judge O’Brien has entirely failed to file a valid answer at all, much less
within the 10-day time limit provided in CCP Section 170.3(c)(3). Thus, under
the law, Judge O’Brien has actually consented to his own disqualification under

CCP 170.3 (c)(4).

/1
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Judge O’Brien Is Disqualified Under The Due Process Clause

Of The United States Constitution.

The United States Supreme Court recently discussed when disqualification

of a judge is required under the Federal Due Process Clause. In Capertonv. A.T.

Massey Coal Co., Inc. (2009) 129 S. Ct. 2252 at 2259, the Court said:

“Tt is axiomatic that “[a] fair trail in a fair tribunal is a basic
requirement of due process.” [Citation] * * * The early and leading
case on the subject is Tumey v. Ohio, 273 U.S. 510, 47 S. Ct. 437, 71
L. Ed. 749(1927) ,

& koK

The Tumey Court concluded that the Due Process Clause incorporated
the common-law rule that a judge must recuse himself when he has
“a direct, personal, substantial, pecuniary interest in a case. /bid.
This rule reflects the maxim that “[n]o man is allowed to be a judge
in his own cause; because his interest would certainly bias his
judgment, and, not improbably, corrupt his integrity.” The
Federalist No. 10, p. 59 (J. Cooke ed.1961) (J. Madison); see Frank,
Disqualification of Judges, 56 Yale L.J. 605, 611-612 (1947) (same).”
(Emphasis added.)

The position of Judge O’Brien, and every other judge who received the
illegal payments, is two-fold with regard to Petitioner’s case: were he to be the
judge on the case, he would “be a judge in his own cause” and additionally, he
would have “a direct, personal, substantial, pecuniary interest” in the fallout

from the case — i.e. the prospect of SBX2 11 being declared unconstitutional

11
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and the prospect of the judges having to return the illegal payments which were

not authorized by law.

Untenable Conflict of Interest Concerning Disqualification
for Receiving Illegal Payments

A key element of Petitioner’s case is the contention that Judge David Yaffe
received illegal payments from Los Angeles County, a party in the case, and that
as a consequence, he was disqualified from hearing the case and all his orders
were void.

Judge O’Brien and Judge Yaffe were and are essentially in the same boat.
They both received the illegal payments from Los Angeles County. The
untenable conflict is that if Judge O’Brien attempts to decide Judge Yaffe’s
disqualification, he will be deciding an issue that is also applicable to himself.
Is Judge O’Brien going to rule against himself?

There is often a significant stigma when a judge is ruled to be disqualified,
especially in the circumstances of the present case. ~Under the facts of the
present case, a disqualification order would say that it was impermissible for a
judge to accept illegal payments from a party in the case. It is highly doubtful
that any judges who took the illegal payments would want such a
disqualification decision on his or her record or publicly known, much less make

that decision themselves! Thus, Judge O’Brien, and any other judge who took

-12-
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the illegal payments, is disqualified from hearing Petitioner’s case, for should
the judge attempt to do so, it would violate the maxim that “[n]o man is allowed
to be a judge in his own cause; because his interest would certainly bias his

judgment . . . .” (Emphasis added) Caperton, supra, 129 S. Ct. 2252 at 2259.

Judge O’Brien’s Direct, Personal, Substantial, Pecuniary Interest in the
Outcome of Petitioner’s Case

As part of his case, Petitioner is challenging the constitutionality of
California’s Senate Bill SBX2 11. The California Legislature enacted SBX2 11
to address the Sturgeon I decision, which held that the Los Angeles County
payments to Superior Court judges were illegal and not authorized under law.

Section 5 of SBX2 11 purports to shield judges who took the illegal
payments from liability, prosecution or discipline for having done so. Given the
judges’ monopoly on controlling the courts, Section 5 attempts to be sort of a

“Get Out of Jail Free” card:

Section. 5. Notwithstanding any other law, no governmental entity,
or officer or employee of a governmental entity, shall incur any
liability or be subject to prosecution or disciplinary action because
of benefits provided to a judge under the official action of a
government entity prior to the effective date of this act on the ground
that those benefits were not authorized under law.” (Emphasis added)

The Legislature, in passing said Section 5, indirectly recognized, for all the

world to see, that judges taking the illegal payments were doing something
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wrong and illegal, even criminal. Normally — the “other law” in the
“notwithstanding any other law” — they would be subject to criminal prosecution
and civil liability, meaning they normally would have to pay the money back!
If this were not the case, why would the Legislature think it necessary to enact

the “retroactive immunity” shield for the judges and others in Section 5 of

SBX2 117

Judge O’Brien received approximately $277,925.00 in illegal payments
from Los Angeles County. Since the payments were illegal and not authorized
by law, normally Judge O’Brien would be subject to criminal prosecution
and/or at least civil liability to pay back the ill-gotten gains. But how is this a
“pecuniary interest” in Petitioner’s case since Judge O’Brien and others have
been generously granted “retroactive immunity” from civil liability, unlike the
rest of us if we did something like they did?

The answer is that there is no retroactive immunity granted under
SBX2-11 became the bill is unconstitutional!

Take, for example, the conclusion recently reached by the Commission on
Judicial Performance in its letter to the California Attorney General on May 23,
2011:

“The commission concludes that the Legislature does not

have . . . [authority to enact legislation that purports to preclude the
commission from disciplining California Superior Court Judges], and
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commission and the California Supreme Court have exclusive
authority over judicial discipline.” (Emphasis added)

Additionally, Section 7 of SBX2-11 provides for severability of the
various parts of the bill:

SEC. 7. Provisions of this act are severable. If any provision of this
act or its application is held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect
other provisions or applications that can be given effect without the
invalid provision or application.

Thus, while other sections of the bill may survive, it is definitely “invalid
and unconstitutional,” as found by the Commission on Judicial Performance.
Thus, when Petitioner’s case establishes this unconstitutionality of law, Judge
O’Brien will be without any retroactive immunity and be liable for paying back
$277,925 in illegally obtained payments. That is certainly “a direct, personal,

substantial, pecuniary interest” of Judge O’Brien in the Petitioner’s case.
SBX2 11 is Unconstitutional and Void For Many Reasons

Additionally, Section 5 of Senate Bill SBX2 11 (1) unconstitutionally
purports to amend California Constitution Article IV, Section 7 (c)(1)(A) - the
right to dismiss or hear charges or complaints against a public officer; (2)
unconstitutionally purports to amend Article IV, Section 8(d) — urgency bill
cannot “grant any franchise or special privilege , or create any vested right or
interest’; (3) violates Article IV, Section 17 — prohibiting a county “to grant

extra compensation or extra allowance to a public officer, public employee, or
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contractor after service has been rendered; (4) violates Article IV, Section 18(b)
— impeachment of judges; and (5) violates Article I, Section 7(b), which states:

(b) A citizen or class of citizens may not be granted privileges or

immunities not granted on the same terms to all citizens.

Privileges or immunities granted by the Legislature may be altered

or revoked.

Senate Bill SBX2-11 purported to grant retroactive immunity from
criminal prosecution , civil liability and disciplinary action to only governmental
entities, officers and employees, leaving everyone else subject to all lawful
statutes and aforesaid constitutional provisions.

The California Constitution can only be amended or revised pursuant to
Article 18. The Legislature may propose an Amendment (Section 1 and 2) to be
voted upon by the citizens (Section 4) or the voters may pass an amendment by
initiative (Section 3). The enactment of “emergency legislation” during a
special session of the Legislature is not an authorized manner to amend or revise
the California Constitution under Article 18.

Senate Bill SBX2 11 as a whole was void as being unconstitutional under
the California Constitution because it violated Article IV, Section 9 (the single
subject rule), which states:

SEC. 9. A statute shall embrace but one subject, which shall be

expressed in its title, only the part not expressed is void. A statute

may not be amended by reference to its title. A section of a statute

may not be amended unless the section is re-enacted as amended.”
(Emphasis added)
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The title of Senate Bill SBX2 11, as amended 2/14/09, is “An act to add
Section 68220, 68221, and 68222 to the Government Code, relating to judges.”
The title did not mention the purported immunity for governmental entities,
officials and employees. Nor, for that matter, did the title mention the supposed
authorization of County-paid benefits in the future, the Judicial Council preparing
a report analyzing the statewide benefits inconsistencies, nor much of anything
else. From the aforesaid three topics, it is easily seen that SBX2 11 violates the
“single subject” rule of Section 9.

Further, the stated retroactive immunity in Senate Bill SBX2 11 was very
narrow on its face and did not extend to the “obstruction of justice” of a judge
presiding over a case in which he/she had received or was receiving illegal
payments from a county, nor did it extend to a judge violating provisions of law
as such as the California Code of Civil Procedure, the Penal Code, the Code of
Judicial Ethics or any federal laws such as the intangible right to honest services,
18 U.S.C. 1346, or the U. S . or California Constitutions.

The enactment of retroactive immunity from criminal prosecution by
Section 5 of Senate Bill SBX2 11 (enacted 2/20/09, effective 5/21/09) confirmed
that L.A. County’s (and all counties’) payments to judges were criminal.

California Penal Code Sections 7, 92, 93, 94, 96.5, 98 and 182(a)(5) made

these county payments to judges “bribes”, “obstruction of justice”, and a
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“conspiracy”, and required the judges to forfeit their offices. Such sections state

as follows:
Penal Code Section 7:

The following words have in this code the signification attached
to them in this section, unless otherwise apparent from the
context:

3. The word "corruptly" imports a wrongful design to acquire
or cause some pecuniary or other advantage to the person guilty
of the act or omission referred to, or to some other person.

6. The word "bribe" signifies anything of value or advantage,
present or prospective, or any promise or undertaking to give
any, asked, given, or accepted, with a corrupt intent to
influence, unlawfully, the person to whom it is given, in his or
her action, vote, or opinion, in any public or official capacity.”

Penal Code Section 92:

Every person who gives or offers to give a bribe to any
judicial officer, juror, referee, arbitrator, or umpire, or to any
person who may be authorized by law to hear or determine
any question or controversy, with intent to influence his
vote, opinion, or decision upon any matter or question
which is or may be brought before him for decision, is
punishable by imprisonment in the state prison for two,
three or four years.” (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 93:

(a) Every judicial officer, juror, referee, arbitrator, or umpire,
and every person authorized by law to hear or determine
any question or controversy, who asks, receives, or agrees to
receive, any bribe, upon any agreement or understanding
that his or her vote, opinion, or decision upon any matters
or question which is or may be brought before him or her
for decision, shall be influenced thereby, is punishable by

-18-
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imprisonment in the state prison for two, three, or four
years and, in cases where no bribe has been actually
received, by a restitution fine of not less than two thousand
dollars ($2,000) or not more than ten thousand dollars
($10,000) or, in cases where a bribe was actually received,
by a restitution fine of at least the actual amount of the
bribe received or two thousand dollars ($2,000), whichever
is greater, or any larger amount of not more than double
the amount of any bribe received or ten thousand dollars
($10,000), whichever is greater.

(b) In imposing a restitution fine under this section, the
court shall consider the defendant's ability to pay the fine.
(Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 94:

“Every judicial officer who asks or receives any emolument,
gratuity, or reward, or any promise thereof, except such as
may be authorized by law, for doing any official act, is
guilty of a misdemeanor. The lawful compensation of a
temporary judge shall be prescribed by Judicial Council rule.
Every judicial officer who shall ask or receive the whole or any
part of the fees allowed by law to any stenographer or reporter
appointed by him or her, or any other person, to record the
proceedings of any court or investigation held by him or her,
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof
shall forfeit his or her office. Any stenographer or reporter,
appointed by any judicial officer in this state, who shall pay, or
offer to pay, the whole or any part of the fees allowed him or
her by law, for his or her appointment or retention in office,
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof
shall be forever disqualified from holding any similar office in
the courts of this state.” (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 96.5:

“(a) Every judicial officer, court commissioner, or
referee who commits any act that he or she knows perverts
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or obstructs justice, is guilty of a public offense punishable by
imprisonment in a county jail for not more than one year.

(b) Nothing in this section prohibits prosecution under
paragraph (5) of subdivision (a) of Section 182 of the Penal
Code or any other law.” (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 98:

“Bvery officer convicted of any crime defined in this Chapter,
in addition to the punishment prescribed, forfeits his office
and is forever disqualified from holding any office in this
State.” (Emphasis added.)

Penal Code Section 182(a)(5):

(a) If two or more persons conspire:
(5) To commit any act injurious to the public health, to
public morals, or to pervert or obstruct justice, or the
due administration of the laws.”

They are punishable as follows:

* % ok

When they conspire to commit any other
felony, they shall be punishable in the same
manner and to the same extent as is provided for
the punishment of that felony. If the felony is one
for which different punishments are prescribed for
different degrees, the jury or court which finds the
defendant guilty thereof shall determine the degree
of the felony the defendant conspired to commit.
If the degree is not so determined, the punishment
for conspiracy to commit the felony shall be that
prescribed for the lesser degree, except in the case
of conspiracy to commit murder, in which case the
punishment shall be that prescribed for murder in
the first degree.

If the felony is conspiracy to commit two or
more felonies which have different punishments
and the commission of those felonies constitute but
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one offense of conspiracy, the penalty shall be that
prescribed for the felony which has the greater
maximum term. (Emphasis added.)

None of the aforementioned criminal statutes were mentioned in the title
or the body of Senate Bill SBX2 11. Yet, Senate Bill SBX2 11 attempted to
amend each of them by granting retroactive immunity to governmental entities,
officials and employees from each of these laws. Section 5 of Senate Bill
SBX2-11 is void as an attempt to create retroactive immunity from civil and
criminal liability in violation of Article I, Section 7(b), of the California
Constitution.

Also, Senate Bill SBX2 11 was void as being unconstitutional under the
Equal Protection Clause of the U.S. Constitution as granting privileges and
retroactive immunity from criminal prosecution to a distinct class of people who
had violated the law, which privileges and retroactive immunity from criminal
prosecution do not have any basis in law and are not granted on the same terms
to California citizens at large.

United States law, in particular 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 — the intangible
right to honest services, which Article 6, C1.2 of the U. S. Constitution requires
State judges to obey -- mandates that payments by a party in a case to a judge are

illegal, particularly in California which has a “unique” bribery statute. The cases

arc:

21-
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(A) US. v. Frega, U.S. v. Malkus, U.S. v. Adams (1999) 179 F.3d 793

(the payment by a party and an attorney appearing before a judge to
such judge are bribery and violate 18 U.S.C. Section 1346 - the
intangible right to honest services) - stating at 805-807:
“Because no linkage of payment and specific official act is
required under California law and because the indictment
incorporates the relevant state bribery statues, which, in turn,
state the elements of the bribery offenses, the indictment is

valid in this respect.” (Emphasis added)

and

(B) Skilling v. United States (decided June 24, 2010) _ U.S._ (18

U.S. C. Section 346 “criminalizes only the bribe and kick-back core

of the pre-McNally case law, page 45 of opinion.)

Commencing in approximately 1985 and continuing onwards, Judge
Robert H. O’Brien and other Superior Court judges began receiving illegal L A

County payments, that:

(a) violated 18 U.S.C. Section 4 by committing the crime of
“Misprision of Felony” by not reporting the crimes committed by
their fellow members of the Superior Court who were receiving
illegal payments from L.A. County. 18 U.S.C. Section 18 states

as follows:

20
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§ “Misprision of felony

Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony
cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as
soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other
person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be
fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or
both.”

(b) violated 18 U.S.C. Section 241 by committing the crime of Conspiracy
Against Rights by depriving litigants of their First Amendment right to
petition the government for redress of grievances, the Fourteenth
Amendment right to due process and the Fifth Amendment right to not be
deprived of life, liberty or property without due process of law. 18 U.S.C.

Section 241 states in relevant part:

§241 “Conspiracy against rights

If two or more persons conspire to injure, oppress, threaten, or
intimidate any person in any State, Territory, Commonwealth,
Possession, or District in the free exercise or enjoyment of any
right or privilege secured to him by the Constitution or laws of the
United States, or because of his having so exercised the same; or

If two or more persons go in disguise on the highway, or on the
premises of another, with intent to prevent or hinder his free exercise
or enjoyment of any right or privilege so secured --

They shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than ten
years, or both; and if death results from the acts committed in
violation of this section or if such acts include kidnapping or an
attempt to kidnap, aggravated sexual abuse or an attempt to commit
aggravated sexual abuse, or an attempt to kill, they shall be fined

223
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under this title or imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both,
or may be sentenced to death.” (Emphasis added)
(c) violated the Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Practices Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C.
Section 1960, et seq., 18 U.S.C. Section 1962 (c) and (d), which states as
follows in relevant part:
“(c) It shall be unlawful for any person employed by or associated
with any enterprise engaged in, or the activities of which affect,
interstate or foreign commerce, to conduct or participate, directly or

indirectly, in the conduct of such enterprise’s affairs through a pattern
of racketeering activity or collection of unlawful debt.

(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to conspire to violate any of
the provisions of subsection (a), (b), or (c) of this section.”

The violations were as follows: by engaging in a concert of action
consisting of the L.A. County Board of Supervisors, L.A. County and the judges
of the Superior Court who (commencing in or about 1985 onwards) accepted
illegal payments from L.A. County, which was a party in cases before such
judges, and in return, such Superior Court judges decided nearly all cases
involving L.A. County in favor of L A County, as shown by the 2005-2006
through 208-2009 L. A County Counsel Annual Litigation Reports to the L.A.
County Board of Supervisors.

1"
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All L.A. Superior Court Judges, Ninety Percent of California Judges And
Five Of The Current California Supreme Court Justices Are Encompassed
By The Illegal County Payments

Any judge who received the illegal county payments is subject to criminal
prosecution, mandatory removal from office and civil liability under California
and Federal law. Under CCP Section 170.1 and Canons 2A, 3E (1) and (2) and
4(D)(1) of the Canon of Judicial Ethics, they were required to recuse themselves
from any case in which the county was a party, or had an interest, or was likely
to appear. They were required to disclose the county payments and they were
required to not accept the county payments in the first place.

Further, having accepted the county payments and violating the law, every
order and judgment made by any of the judges or justices was void whenever the
county which paid the illegal benefits was a party to a case and to the
obstruction of justice committed by the judges and the county.

The result was that approximately $350 million of illegal payments were
made by L.A. County to the judges sitting in L.A. County which now must be
repaid by all of the judges who received the illegal monies, and all recipients
must be removed from office and prosecuted for bribery and obstruction of

justice if the law is to mean anything and be respected and obeyed.

/1
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Judge Robert H. O’Brien Is Disqualified From Hearing Petitioner’s Case
Judge O’Brien took $277,925 in illegal payments from Los Angeles
County. He illegally struck Petitioner’s Verified Statement. He failed to file a
valid answer within 10 days as required by statute. He obstructed justice and
violated various Federal and State laws.
In light of all the above, clearly Judge Robert O’Brien should recuse

himself or be declared to be disqualified to be the judge on Petitioner’s case.

PETITIONER’S PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, in light of all the above, Petitioner prays for relief as follows:

1. That this Court issues a Statement of Decision to support its judgment on
this Petition for Writ of Mandate:

2. That this Court issue a Writ of Mandate ordering that Judge Robert H.
O’Brien is disqualified from any longer presiding on Petitioner’s case:
BS106456;

3. That this Court find that Judge Robert H. O’Brien has violated the Code
of Judicial Ethics and issue a Writ of Mandate ordering Jude O’Brien to

comply with all provisions of said Code;
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4. That this Court find that Judge O’Brien illegally struck Petitioner’s
Verified Statement;

5. That this Court find that Judge O’Brien failed to answer Petitioner’s
Verified Statement;

6. That this Court find that Judge O’Brien has “a direct, personal
substantial, pecuniary interest” in the outcome of Petitioner’s case;

7. That this Court find that SBX2 11 is unconstitutional;

8. That this Court issue a Writ of Mandate directing the District Attorney,
Attorney General, and the U.S. Attorney to investigate the facts set forth
herein and prosecute any persons found to have violated any laws.

9. That this Court, in view of the fact that nearly all judges in the 2nd
District Court of Appeals have been compromised by accepting illegal
payments from Los Angeles County, issue a Writ of Mandate directing
that Petitioner’s case be transferred to an appropriate court where the
judges do not receive illegal payments of supplemental benefits; and

10.That this Court grant such other or further relief as may be just and
proper, including an award of Petitioner’s costs on appeal.

Dated: September 21, 2011 Respectfully submitted,

BY:

/David R. Hernandez,
In Pro Per

27

/7 /s

Alq0




PROQOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I am John G. Baron. I am over eighteen years of age, and not a party to the

within cause. My address is 2309-31% Street, Apt. C., Santa Monica CA 90405,

On September 21, 2011, I served the foregoing document described as

NOTICE OF NULL AND VOID ORDER DATED SEPT. 6, 2011 and
DISQUALIFICATION OF JUDGE ROBERT H. O’BRIEN

on interested parties in this action by depositing a true copy thereof, which was
enclosed in a sealed envelope, with postage fully prepaid, in the United States

Mail, addressed as follows:

County of Los Angeles mew-onm .

Office of County Counsel

648 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration Judge /?o ‘w'/’ D,Em:vm

500 West Temple Street Department

Los Angeles, CA 90012 Stanley Mosk Court House
111 North Hill Street

City of Los Angeles Los Angeles, CA 90012

Office of the City Attorney
800 City Hall East W&%
200 No. Spring Street )

Los Angeles, CA 90012

I certify and declare, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States

of America and the State of California, that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on this 21st day of September, 2011, at Santa Monica, California.

John G. Baron
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1

Read Message htp://mail.richardfinetaw convogi-bin/inbox.exe7id=0 1{8e79¢d0e1358...

[Read Massage ‘;
prevous | ot | " ove Tol Gatect e

F ‘ m1 Iverson, Grega M, <GIVERSON@audtor.acounty.gov>

[ ndd o contycls |
To; richardfine@tichardfinelw.com
Ca

te: Thursday, January 13,2011 05:13 pm
$ubj[eue RE: Publc Records Request for Documents

Mr. I(:ne

The County’s racords show that Judge O'Brien terminated 6/16/1899, based on this he would: not have recaive
Gounty payments from 2000 to present.

As fPr years prior to the years prior 1989, Judge O'Brien first started recalving Cafeteria Pian and 407k plan
beanlts in 1985. the professional development allowance did not start urtil 1991, :

The cost to create and run a program to extract the information for years prior to 1989 (1965 through 1888) woukd
be abou $400.

f
| hoée this helps.
Frol‘p: nchardfine@richandfinelaw.oxm [maltto:richardfine@richardfinelaw.com]
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2011 10:58 AM
To: Iverson, Gregg M.
Cc: tichardfine@richardfinalaw.com
s;:b! ct: Re: Public Records Request for Documents

Deag' Mr. [verson:

Thank you for your speedy reply. It is most appreciated. Would you please be so kind as to inform me
of the other years in which Judge Obrien received the "local judicial benefits" or LA County payments,
if such can be done without engaging in extensive research. Additionally, would you please be so kind
as tcl inform me of the cost of the research to receive the full report of the remaining years. I am
particularty interested to know if Judge Obrien received LA County payments from 2000 through the

present.

'Ihall.k you for your coaperation and attention to this most fmportant matter.

Sincerely,

Richard I. Fine

—:0riginal Message-«---

From: Iverson, Gregg M. [mailto:GIVERSON@auditor lacounty.gov]
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2011 12:45 PM

Yo: richangiine@richardfinslaw,.com

e 'Victor, Michele’

Subject: RE: Public Records Request for Documents /

; pexa
~Ghbt - AT
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310 277 1543
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hitp://tail.richard inelaw. com/cgi-binfinbox exe7id=011879cd90e 1358...,

Mr. Fine,

As for the other years, the County does not have an identifiable summary record of Judge é?Bnen?s focal
_ 1 icial benefits. Electronic detalled records do exist for these perieds, but accessing the records would

17m responding to your request for a summary of 7iocal judicial benefits? for Superior Court Judgs Robert H.
O78rien from 198078 to the present. The County?s payroll records show the Judge O7Brien assumed his
posttion on 12/30/1981 and terminated the position on 8/16/1890. Fer that period. 17m able to provided you

with the reguested information for the years of 1989 through 1899, | have provided that m’orrmbon below.

uire custom programming which you would be required 1o reimburse the County for s c¢st
qﬁesmns pleass contact by e-mall at.

giverson@auditor. lacounty.gov
Year Cafeterta Plan 401K and 457 Professional
Benefits Employer Development
Contributions Allowance

3
1989 | 6,111.54 & 3,492.30 -
1890 | 3 7,206.83 $ 3,758.78 —s
1981 $8  15,192.52 3 4,535.44 1?960.00
1992 | & 18,866.40 $ 6.536.64 4%704.00
1993 §  18,868.40 $ 549.03 4?954.00
1994 | $ 19,731.22 3 2,067.85 53;004.00
1995 | % Zé, 354.56 3 7.442.24 5$ 154.00
1998 | $ 2040408 | $ 7.667.64 55;1 84.00
1997 | $ 20,404.08 $ 7.420.97 5?324. 00
1998 | $  20,659.18 $ 517568 53;352.00
1999| § 1599292 | $ _ 397078 3$;882.00

if you have

From. CONSTITUENT

t: Monday, January 10, 2011 12:10 PM
;:Tnchardﬁne@nchardﬂne[aw.oum
Subject: RE; Public Records Request for Documents

Th

A-16

nk you for contacting Los Angeles County Department of Auditor-Controlier.

Your e-mail inquiry has been reviewed and has been forwarded to the appropriate Auditor- / /

E\t‘i bs+" / —
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|
Rend Massape : bttp//mail richardfinclaw convegi-bin/inbox.exe?id=018¢79cdMalISn...

i
f

| Gontrofler staff to be fescamhcd. You will receive a direct response from thcn%t. If you have any
| further questions, please contact Michele Victor at (213) 974-8505. i

{

1 ‘
: l#efcrcnce No.: CEll -6
i f
| :

i

| From: richardNne@richardfinelaw.com [mailto:richardfine@richardfinelaw.com]
| Sent: Mon 1/10/2011 11:38 AM

1 To: CONSTITUENT ?

Ce: richardfine@richardfinelaw.com

Subject: Public Records Request for Documents

| i

Dear Auditor: Pursuant to the provisions of the Califormia Public Records Act, request is hereby made for documents
showing all payments made from LA County commonly known as "local judicial benefits” to LA Superior Court Judgs
Robsrt EL O'Brien from the commencerment of such payments belivved o be in the 1980's through the present. A yearly
slfnmmry of "cafeteria plan benefits", 401(k) or other retirement contributions, and "professional devalopment aliowances”
atd any other LA County compensation for each year that the "local judicial benefits® were paid will be sufficient. Time is
of the essence, An ¢ mail response 1o richardfine@richrdfinelaw.com comaining all available recorifs or a summary
tHereof will be sufficient. Thank you for your immediate attention to this rost urgent matter. Sincerely,Richard I. Fine

Attachments: [ Text version of this messaag. (SKB)
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